## SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

# Form S-3

REGISTRATION STATEMENT Under THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

# **Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc.**

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 2836 (Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code Number) 33-0525145 (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

10555 Science Center Drive San Diego, California 92121 (858) 658-7600

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant's principal executive offices)

Agent for Service:
Gary A. Lyons
President and Chief Executive Officer
Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc.
10555 Science Center Drive
San Diego, California 92121
(858) 658-7600

Copies to:
Scott N. Wolfe, Esq
Robert E. Burwell, Esq
Latham & Watkins LLP
12636 High Bluff Drive, Suite 300
San Diego, California 92130
(858) 523-5400

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: From time to time after the effective date of this registration statement.

If the only securities being registered on this Form are being offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the following box. o

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box.

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, please check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. o

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

If delivery of the prospectus is expected to be made pursuant to Rule 434, please check the following box. o

## CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of Securities to be Registered	Proposed Maximum Aggregate Offering Price(1)	Amount of Registration Fee(2)
Preferred Stock, par value \$0.001 per share, and Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share (3)(4)	\$200,000,000	\$16,180

- (1) Estimated solely for purposes of calculating the registration fee, which is calculated in accordance with Rule 457(o) of the rules and regulations under the Securities Act. Rule 457(o) permits the registration fee to be calculated on the basis of the maximum offering price of all of the securities listed and, therefore, the table does not specify by each class information as to the amount to be registered, the proposed maximum offering price per unit or the proposed maximum aggregate offering price.
- (2) Amount calculated pursuant to Section 6(b) under the Securities Act.
- (3) This registration statement also covers such indeterminate number of securities that may be issued upon exchange for, or upon conversion of, as the case may be, the securities registered borounder.
- (4) Each share of common stock includes a right to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Participating preferred stock, par value \$0.001 per share.

Neurocrine hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until Neurocrine shall file a further amendment that specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until this registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to Section 8(a), may determine.

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

(Subject to completion, dated June 6, 2003)

## **PROSPECTUS**

## \$200,000,000

## NEUROCRINE BIOSCIENCES, INC.

## Preferred Stock

Common	Stock
--------	-------

We may offer and sell from time to time in one or more classes or series and in amounts, at prices and on the terms that we will determine at the time of offering, with an aggregate initial offering price of up to \$200,000,000:

- · shares of preferred stock; and
- shares of common stock.

We will provide the specific terms of these securities in supplements to this prospectus. You should read this prospectus and any supplement carefully before you invest.

Our common stock is quoted and traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "NBIX."  $\,$ 

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

We will sell these securities directly to our stockholders or to purchasers or through agents on our behalf or through underwriters or dealers as designated from time to time. If any agents or underwriters are involved in the sale of any of these securities, the applicable prospectus supplement will provide the names of the agents or underwriters and any applicable fees, commissions or discounts.

The date of this prospectus is  $\,$  , 2003

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

**ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS** 

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

**NEUROCRINE** 

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

**USE OF PROCEEDS** 

**DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK** 

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

**LEGAL MATTERS** 

**EXPERTS** 

**SIGNATURES** 

**EXHIBIT INDEX** 

EXHIBIT 5.1

**EXHIBIT 12.1** 

EXHIBIT 23.2

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We have not authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are not making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus is accurate as of the date on the front cover of this prospectus only. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have subsequently changed.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
About this Prospectus	2
Where You Can Find More Information	2
Forward-Looking Statements	3
Neurocrine	3
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	4
Use of Proceeds	4
Description of Capital Stock	5
Plan of Distribution	10
Legal Matters	11
Experts	11

Whenever we refer to "Neurocrine," "we," "our" or "us" in this prospectus, we mean Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless the context suggests otherwise. When we refer to "you" or "yours," we mean the holders of the applicable series of securities.

### ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, using a "shelf" registration process. Under this shelf registration process, we may sell any combination of the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings up to a total dollar amount of \$200,000,000. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we offer to sell securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. To the extent that any statement that we make in a prospectus supplement is inconsistent with statements made in this prospectus will be deemed modified or superseded by those made in a prospectus supplement. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the next heading, "Where You Can Find More Information."

## WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Neurocrine is subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and files annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any reports, proxy statements and other information we file at the SEC's public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. You may also access filed documents at the SEC's web site at www.sec.gov.

We are incorporating by reference some information about us that we file with the SEC. We are disclosing important information to you by referencing those filed documents. Any information that we reference this way is considered part of this prospectus. The information in this prospectus supersedes information incorporated by reference that we have filed with the SEC prior to the date of this prospectus, while information that we file with the SEC after the date of this prospectus that is incorporated by reference will automatically update and supersede this information.

We incorporate by reference the following documents we have filed, or may file, with the SEC:

- Neurocrine's Annual Report on Form 10-K for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2002;
- Neurocrine's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for its quarterly period ended March 31, 2003;
- Neurocrine's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 9, 2003;
- Neurocrine's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 3, 2003;
- · the description of Neurocrine's common stock contained in the Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on April 3, 1996; and
- all documents filed by Neurocrine with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of this prospectus and before termination of this offering.

You may request a free copy of any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus by writing or telephoning us at the following address:

Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc. 10555 Science Center Drive San Diego, California 92121 (858) 658-7600

## FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Any statements in this prospectus about our expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions or future events or performance are not historical facts and are forward-looking statements. You can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of words or phrases such as "believe," "may," "could," "will," "estimate," "continue," "anticipate," "intend," "seek," "plan," "expect," "should," "would." Among the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements are risks and uncertainties associated with our development programs and business and finances including, but not limited to, the risk that our drug candidates will not successfully proceed through clinical trials or that later stage clinical trials will not show that they are effective in treating humans; adverse determinations by regulatory and governmental authorities; dependence on corporate collaborators who could terminate their relationships with us at any time; uncertainties relating to patent protection and intellectual property rights of third parties; the impact of competitive products and technological changes; our ability to raise additional capital and the cost of the capital; and other material risks described under the heading "Risk Factors" in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, events, levels of activity, performance or achievement. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, unless required by law.

### NEUROCRINE

We develop and intend to commercialize drugs for the treatment of neurologic and endocrine system-related diseases and disorders. Our product candidates address some of the largest pharmaceutical markets in the world, including insomnia, anxiety, depression, diabetes mellitus, multiple sclerosis, irritable bowel syndrome, eating disorders, pain, auto immunity and certain female and male health disorders. We currently have 16 programs in various stages of research and development, including seven programs in clinical development. Our lead clinical development program is a drug for the treatment of insomnia currently being evaluated in Phase III clinical trials.

While we independently develop the majority of our product candidates, we have entered into collaborations for seven of our 16 programs. We currently have product development collaborations with Pfizer, GlaxoSmithKline and Wyeth.

Our headquarters are located at 10555 Science Center Drive, San Diego, California 92121. Our telephone number is (858) 658-7600.

## RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Our ratios of earnings to fixed charges and preferred stock dividends are as follows for the periods indicated:

	Three Mor Marc	nths Ended ch 31,		Year Ended December 31,				
	2003	2002	2002	2001	2000	1999	1998	
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred								
Stock Dividends	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998 and the three-month period ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, our earnings were insufficient to cover fixed charges by \$813,000, \$746,000, \$847,000, \$914,000, \$746,000, \$255,000 and \$202,000, respectively. Fixed charges consist of interest expense, including capitalized interest, amortized premiums, discounts and capitalized expenses related to indebtedness and estimated interest included in rental expense. For the periods indicated above, we had no outstanding shares of preferred stock with required dividend payments.

## USE OF PROCEEDS

Unless otherwise indicated in the prospectus supplement, we intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of the securities under this prospectus for general corporate purposes, including clinical trials, research and development expenses, general and administrative expenses, manufacturing expenses, and potential acquisitions of companies and technologies that complement our business. When a particular series of securities is offered, the prospectus supplement relating thereto will set forth our intended use for the net proceeds we receive from the sale of the securities. Pending the application of the net proceeds, we expect to invest the proceeds in short-term, interest-bearing instruments or other investment-grade securities.

## DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

#### General

This prospectus describes the general terms of our capital stock. For a more detailed description of these securities, you should read the applicable provisions of Delaware law and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws. When we offer to sell a particular series of these securities, we will describe the specific terms of the series in a supplement to this prospectus. Accordingly, for a description of the terms of any series of securities, you must refer to both the prospectus supplement relating to that series and the description of the securities described in this prospectus. To the extent the information contained in the prospectus supplement differs from this summary description, you should rely on the information in the prospectus supplement.

Under our certificate of incorporation, the total number of shares of all classes of stock that we have authority to issue is 55,000,000, consisting of 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.001 per share, and 50,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$0.001 per share.

### Common Stock

As of June 4, 2003, we had 31,362,536 shares of our common stock outstanding held of record by approximately 98 stockholders.

The holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders, and do not have cumulative voting rights. Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any of our outstanding preferred stock, the holders of common stock are entitled to receive ratably the dividends, if any, that may be declared from time to time by our board of directors out of funds legally available for such dividends. In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Neurocrine, the holders of our common stock would be entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities and the satisfaction of any liquidation preferences granted to the holders of any outstanding shares of preferred stock. Holders of our common stock have no preemptive rights and no conversion rights or other subscription rights. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to our common stock. All the outstanding shares of common stock are, and the shares offered by this prospectus, when issued and paid for, will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable. The rights, preferences and privileges of holders of our common stock are subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of any shares of our outstanding preferred stock.

#### Preferred Stock

We currently have no outstanding shares of preferred stock. Under our certificate of incorporation, our board of directors is authorized to issue shares of our preferred stock from time to time, in one or more classes or series, without stockholder approval. Prior to the issuance of shares of each series, the board of directors is required by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, known as the DGCL, and our certificate of incorporation to adopt resolutions and file a certificate of designation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. The certificate of designation fixes for each class or series the designations, powers, preferences, rights, qualifications, limitations and restrictions, including the following:

- the number of shares constituting each class or series;
- voting rights;
- rights and terms of redemption, including sinking fund provisions;

- dividend rights and rates;
- · dissolution;
- terms concerning the distribution of assets;
- conversion or exchange terms;
- · redemption prices; and
- · liquidation preferences.

All shares of preferred stock offered by this prospectus will, when issued, be fully paid and nonassessable and will not have any preemptive or similar rights. Our board of directors could authorize the issuance of shares of preferred stock with terms and conditions that could have the effect of discouraging a takeover or other transaction that might involve a premium price for holders of the shares or that holders might believe to be in their best interests.

We will describe in a prospectus supplement relating to the class or series of preferred stock being offered the following terms:

- the title and stated value of the preferred stock;
- the number of shares of the preferred stock offered, the liquidation preference per share and the offering price of the preferred stock;
- the dividend rate(s), period(s) or payment date(s) or method(s) of calculation applicable to the preferred stock;
- whether dividends are cumulative or non-cumulative and, if cumulative, the date from which dividends on the preferred stock will accumulate;
- the procedures for any auction and remarketing, if any, for the preferred stock;
- the provisions for a sinking fund, if any, for the preferred stock;
- the provision for redemption, if applicable, of the preferred stock;
- any listing of the preferred stock on any securities exchange;
- the terms and conditions, if applicable, upon which the preferred stock will be convertible into common stock, including the conversion price or manner of calculation and conversion period;
- · voting rights, if any, of the preferred stock;
- whether interests in the preferred stock will be represented by depositary shares;
- a discussion of any material or special United States federal income tax considerations applicable to the preferred stock;

- the relative ranking and preferences of the preferred stock as to dividend rights and rights upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our affairs;
- any limitations on issuance of any class or series of preferred stock ranking senior to or on a parity with the class or series of preferred stock as to dividend rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our affairs; and
- any other specific terms, preferences, rights, limitations or restrictions of the preferred stock.

Unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, the preferred stock will rank, relating to dividends and upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up:

- · senior to all classes or series of our common stock and to all of our equity securities ranking junior to the preferred stock;
- · on a parity with all of our equity securities the terms of which specifically provide that the equity securities rank on a parity with the preferred stock; and
- · junior to all of our equity securities the terms of which specifically provide that the equity securities rank senior to the preferred stock.

The term equity securities does not include convertible debt securities.

### **Anti-Takeover Provisions**

As a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Delaware, we are subject to Section 203 of the DGCL, which restricts our ability to enter into business combinations with an interested stockholder or a stockholder owning 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock, or that stockholder's affiliates or associates, for a period of three years. These restrictions do not apply if:

- prior to becoming an interested stockholder, our board of directors approves either the business combination or the transaction in which the stockholder becomes an interested stockholder:
- upon consummation of the transaction in which the stockholder becomes an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owns at least 85% of our voting stock outstanding at
  the time the transaction commenced, subject to exceptions; or
- on or after the date a stockholder becomes an interested stockholder, the business combination is both approved by our board of directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of our stockholders by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock not owned by the interested stockholder.

Some provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could also have anti-takeover effects. These provisions:

- · provide for a board comprised of three classes of directors with each class serving a staggered three-year term;
- authorize the issuance of preferred stock in one or more series; and

require the approval of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock to amend certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws.

These provisions are intended to enhance the likelihood of continuity and stability in the composition of the policies formulated by the board of directors. These provisions are also intended to discourage some tactics that may be used in proxy fights.

#### Stockholder Rights Plan

On April 10, 1997, our board of directors adopted a stockholder rights plan, which was amended and restated on January 11, 2002. Under the rights plan, a dividend of one preferred share purchase right was declared for each outstanding share of our common stock. The common stock currently trades with a right to purchase Series A Participating preferred stock. A preferred share purchase right will be attached to each share of common stock issued during the term of the rights plan. Each right entitles the holder to buy one one-thousandth of a share of our Series A preferred stock at an exercise price of \$350.00, subject to anti-dilution adjustments, upon the triggering event of a person acquiring, or making a tender or exchange offer for, 15% or more of our outstanding common stock. Each right entities its holder, other than the person acquiring 15% or more of the outstanding common stock, to purchase shares of our common stock with a market value of twice the right's exercise price. In addition, if a company acquires us in a merger or other business combination, or if we sell more than 50% of our consolidated assets or earning power, these rights will entitle our stockholders, other than the acquirer, to purchase, for the exercise price, shares of the common stock of the acquiring company having a market value of two times the exercise price. At any time prior to these events, the board of directors may redeem the rights at one cent per right.

The rights plan is intended to protect stockholders in the event of an unsolicited attempt to acquire us. The right is transferred automatically with the transfer of the common stock until separate rights certificates are distributed upon the occurrence of certain events. The rights plan could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a person from acquiring us or accomplishing a change in control of the board of directors. This description of the rights plan is intended as a summary only and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the amended and restated rights agreement dated as of January 11, 2002 between Neurocrine and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company. To obtain a copy of the amended and restated rights agreement see the section of this prospectus entitled "Where You Can Find More Information."

#### Classified Board of Directors

The certificate of incorporation provides for the board of directors to be divided into three classes of directors, with each class as nearly equal in number as possible, serving staggered three-year terms. As a result, approximately one-third of the board of directors will be elected each year. The classified board provision will help to assure the continuity and stability of the board of directors and the business strategies and policies of Neurocrine as determined by the board of directors. The classified board provision could have the effect of discouraging a third party from making a tender offer or attempting to obtain control of us. In addition, the classified board provision could delay stockholders who do not agree with the policies of the board of directors from removing a majority of the board of directors for two years.

### **Special Meetings**

The bylaws also provide that special meetings of stockholders may be called only by the board of directors, its chairman, the president or by one or more stockholders holding 10% of the votes at that meeting.

## **Number of Directors; Removal**

The bylaws provide that the board of directors will consist of seven members. The bylaws provide that directors may be removed with or without cause by the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the total voting power of all outstanding securities.

## Transfer Agent and Registrar

The Transfer Agent and Registrar for our common stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust Corporation.

### PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the securities from time to time pursuant to underwritten public offerings, negotiated transactions, block trades or a combination of these methods. We may sell the securities (1) through underwriters or dealers, (2) through agents and/or (3) directly to one or more purchasers. We may distribute the securities from time to time in one or more transactions at:

- a fixed price or prices, which may be changed;
- · market prices prevailing at the time of sale;
- · prices related to the prevailing market prices; or
- negotiated prices.

We may solicit directly offers to purchase the securities being offered by this prospectus. We may also designate agents to solicit offers to purchase the securities from time to time. We will name in a prospectus supplement any agent involved in the offer or sale of our securities.

If we utilize a dealer in the sale of the securities being offered by this prospectus, we will sell the securities to the dealer, as principal. The dealer may then resell the securities to the public at varying prices to be determined by the dealer at the time of resale.

If we utilize an underwriter in the sale of the securities being offered by this prospectus, we will execute an underwriting agreement with the underwriter at the time of sale and we will provide the name of any underwriter in the prospectus supplement that the underwriter will use to make resales of the securities to the public. In connection with the sale of the securities, we, or the purchasers of securities for whom the underwriter may act as agent, may compensate the underwriter in the form of underwriting discounts or commissions. The underwriter may sell the securities to or through dealers, and the underwriter may compensate those dealers in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions.

We will provide in the applicable prospectus supplement any compensation we pay to underwriters, dealers or agents in connection with the offering of the securities, and any discounts, concessions or commissions allowed by underwriters to participating dealers. Underwriters, dealers and agents participating in the distribution of the securities may be deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and any discounts and commissions received by them and any profit realized by them on resale of the securities may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions. We may enter into agreements to indemnify underwriters, dealers and agents against civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribute to payments they may be required to make in respect thereof.

The securities may or may not be listed on a national securities exchange. To facilitate the offering of securities, certain persons participating in the offering may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the securities. This may include over-allotments or short sales of the securities, which involves the sale by persons participating in the offering of more securities than we sold to them. In these circumstances, these persons would cover such over-allotments or short positions by making purchases in the open market or by exercising their over-allotment option. In addition, these persons may stabilize or maintain the price of the securities by bidding for or purchasing securities in the open market or by imposing penalty bids, whereby selling concessions allowed to dealers participating in the offering may be reclaimed if securities sold by them are repurchased in connection with stabilization transactions. The effect of these transactions may be to stabilize or maintain the market price of the securities at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open market. These transactions may be discontinued at any time.

The underwriters, dealers and agents may engage in transactions with us, or perform services for us, in the ordinary course of business.

## LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for Neurocrine by Latham & Watkins LLP, San Diego, California.

## **EXPERTS**

Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, have audited Neurocrine's consolidated financial statements included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, as set forth in their report, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement. Neurocrine's financial statements are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP's report, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

### PART II

## INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

## Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution

Our estimated expenses in connection with the distribution of the securities being registered are as set forth in the following table:

SEC Registration Fee	\$ 16,180
Printing and Engraving Expenses	\$ 50,000*
Legal Fees and Expenses	\$ 50,000*
Accounting Fees and Expenses	\$ 25,000*
Miscellaneous	\$ 15,000*
Total	\$156,180*

## Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law generally allows Neurocrine to indemnify directors and officers for all expenses, judgments, fines and amounts in settlement actually paid and reasonably incurred in connection with any proceedings so long as such party acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to Neurocrine's best interests and, with respect to any criminal proceedings, if such party had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct to be unlawful. Indemnification may only be made by Neurocrine if the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Section 145 has been met by the indemnified party upon a determination made (i) by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of the directors who are not parties to such proceedings, even though less than a quorum, (ii) if there are no such directors, or if such directors so direct, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion or (iii) by the stockholders.

Article VII of Neurocrine's Certificate of Incorporation and Article VI, Sections 6.1, 6.2 and 6.3 of Neurocrine's Bylaws provide for indemnification of its directors and officers, and permit indemnification of employees and other agents to the maximum extent permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law. In addition, Neurocrine has entered into indemnification agreements with its officers and directors.

### Item 16. Exhibits

A list of exhibits filed with this registration statement on Form S-3 is set forth on the Exhibit Index and is incorporated herein by reference.

### Item 17. Undertakings

- (a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:
  - (1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
    - (i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

<sup>\*</sup>Estimated

- (ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement; and
- (iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in this registration statement;

provided, however, that subparagraphs (a)(1)(i) and (a)(1)(ii) above do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in periodic reports filed with or furnished to the SEC by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in this registration statement.

- (2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered herein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
  - (3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
- (b) The undersigned registrant hereby further undertakes that, for the purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant's annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that is incorporated by reference in this registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered herein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (c) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to existing provisions or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
  - (d) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that:
- (1) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was declared effective.

(2) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

## **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc. certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of San Diego, State of California, on June 6, 2003.

## Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc.

By: /s/ Gary A. Lyons

Gary A. Lyons

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

## POWER OF ATTORNEY

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated. Each person whose signature appears below authorizes Gary A. Lyons and Paul W. Hawran, and each of them, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, his true and lawful attorneys-infact, for him in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments (including post-effective amendments or supplements) to this registration statement and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the SEC.

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ Gary A. Lyons	President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal  Executive Officer)	June 6, 2003
Gary A. Lyons	Executive Officer)	
/s/ Paul W. Hawran	Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and	June 6, 2003
Paul W. Hawran	Accounting Officer)	
/s/ Joseph A. Mollica	Chairman of the Board of Directors	June 6, 2003
Joseph A. Mollica		
/s/ Richard F. Pops	Director	June 6, 2003
Richard F. Pops		
/s/ Lawrence Steinman	Director	June 6, 2003
Lawrence Steinman		
	II-4	

## EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number	Description
1.1*	Underwriting Agreement
3.1(1)	Restated Certificate of Incorporation
3.2(2)	Bylaws
4.1(1)	Form of Common Stock Certificate
5.1**	Opinion of Latham & Watkins LLP
12.1**	Statement Regarding the Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends
23.1**	Consent of Latham & Watkins LLP (reference is made to Exhibit 5.1)
23.2**	Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors
24.1**	Powers of Attorney (contained on the signature page of this registration statement)

To be filed by amendment or incorporated by reference in connection with the offering of the securities.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Filed herewith.

<sup>(1)</sup> Incorporated by reference to Neurocrine's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-03172).

<sup>(2)</sup> Incorporated by reference to Neurocrine's Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996.

[LATHAM AND WATKINS LLP LETTERHEAD]

June 6, 2003

Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc. 10555 Science Center Drive San Diego, California 92121

Re: \$200,000,000 Aggregate Offering Price of Securities of Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc.

### Ladies and Gentlemen:

In connection with the registration statement on Form S-3 (the "Registration Statement") to be filed by Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), you have requested our opinion with respect to the matters set forth helpw.

You have provided us with a draft of the Registration Statement in the form in which it will be filed, which includes the prospectus (the "Prospectus"). The Prospectus provides that it will be supplemented in the future by one or more supplements to the Prospectus (each, a "Prospectus Supplement"). The Prospectus as supplemented by various Prospectus Supplements will provide for the registration by the Company of up to \$200,000,000 aggregate offering price of (i) shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Preferred Stock"), (ii) shares of common stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Common Stock"), or (iii) any combination of the foregoing, plus any additional Preferred Stock or Common Stock that may be registered pursuant to any subsequent registration statements that the Company may hereafter file with the Commission pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act (collectively, the "Securities"). Any series of Preferred Stock may be convertible and/or exchangeable for Common Stock or another series of Preferred Stock.

In our capacity as your special counsel in connection with such registration, we are familiar with the proceedings taken and proposed to be taken by the Company in connection with the authorization and issuance of the Securities. For the purposes of this opinion, we have assumed that proceedings to be taken in the future will be timely completed in the manner proposed and that the terms of each issuance of the Securities will otherwise be in compliance with law. In addition, we have examined such matters of fact and questions of law as we have considered appropriate for purposes of this letter.

In our examination, we have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals and the conformity to authentic original documents of all documents submitted to us as copies. We have been furnished with, and with your consent have relied upon, certificates of officer(s) of the Company with respect to certain factual matters. In addition, we have obtained and relied upon such certificates and assurances from public officials as we have deemed necessary.

We are opining herein as to the effect on the subject transaction only of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware and we express no opinion with respect to the applicability thereto, or the effect thereon, of any other laws, or as to any matters of municipal law or the laws of any other local agencies within the state.

Subject to the foregoing and the other matters set forth herein, it is our opinion that, as of the date hereof:

- 1. When (a) the Registration Statement and any required post-effective amendments thereto and any and all Prospectus Supplement(s) required by applicable laws have all become effective under the Securities Act and (b) a series of Preferred Stock has been duly established in accordance with the terms of the Company's Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the "Certificate of Incorporation") and applicable law, and upon adoption by the Board of Directors of the Company or a committee thereof of a resolution with respect to the issuance and sale of the Preferred Stock in form and content as required by applicable law, and upon issuance and delivery of and payment of legal consideration in excess of the par value thereof for shares of Preferred Stock in the manner contemplated by the Registration Statement, the Prospectus and the related Prospectus Supplement(s) and by such resolution, and assuming that (i) the terms of such shares are as described in the Registration Statement, the Prospectus and the related Prospectus Supplement(s), (ii) at the time of issuance of such shares, the Company has a sufficient number of authorized but unissued shares under the Company's Restated Certificate of Incorporation, (iii) such shares do not violate any law applicable to the Company or result in a default under or breach of any agreement or investment binding upon the Company, and (iv) such shares comply with all requirements and restrictions, if any, applicable to the Company, whether imposed by any court or governmental or regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Company, such shares of Preferred Stock (including any Preferred Stock duly issued upon the exchange or conversion of any shares of Preferred Stock that are exchangeable or convertible into another series of Preferred Stock) will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.
- 2. When the Registration Statement and any required post-effective amendments thereto and any and all Prospectus Supplement(s) required by applicable laws have all become effective under the Securities Act, and upon adoption by the Board of Directors of the Company or a duly formed committee thereof of a resolution in form and content as required by applicable law and upon issuance and delivery of and payment of legal consideration in excess of the par value thereof for shares of

June 6, 2003 Page 3

Common Stock in the manner contemplated by the Registration Statement, the Prospectus and the related Prospectus Supplement(s) and by such resolution, and assuming that (i) the terms of such shares are as described in the Registration Statement, the Prospectus and the related Prospectus Supplement(s), (ii) at the time of issuance of such shares, the Company has a sufficient number of authorized but unissued shares under the Company's Restated Certificate of Incorporation, and (iii) such shares comply with all requirements and restrictions, if any, applicable to the Company, whether imposed by any court or governmental or regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Company, such shares of Common Stock (including any Common Stock duly issued upon the exchange or conversion of shares of Preferred Stock that are exchangeable or convertible into Common Stock) will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

We consent to your filing this opinion as an exhibit to the Registration Statement and to the reference to our firm contained under the heading "Legal Matters" in the Prospectus included therein.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Latham & Watkins LLP

EXHIBIT 12.1

Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends (table in thousands, except for ratios)

		onths Ended ch 31, 2002	2002	Year 2001	Ended Decemb	er 31, 1999	1998
Fixed Charges Interest expense	\$ 136	\$ 101	\$ 406	\$ 316	\$ 228	\$ 231	\$ 151
Estimated interest portion of rent expense	119	101	407	430	619	683	595
Total Fixed Charges	255	202	813	746	847	914	746
(Loss) income from continuing operations before income taxes	(13,390)	(15,764)	(94,536)	(36,790)	(28,506)	(16,822)	(19,954)
Add: Fixed charges	255	202	813	746	847	914	746
Add: Preferred stock dividends							
Less: Equity in (earnings)/losses and other adjustments of NPI						1,411	7,188
Earnings (loss) before fixed charges	(13,135)	(15,562)	(93,723)	(36,044)	(27,659)	(14,497)	(12,020)
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred stock dividends	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$

For the purpose of calculating the ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred stock dividends, earnings are defined as consolidated income from continuing operations before income taxes plus fixed charges. Fixed charges are the sum of interest of all indebtedness, and estimated interest within rental expense. We have no amortization of debt issuance costs, no outstanding shares of preferred securities with required dividend payments, or capitalized interest. Earnings were inadequate to cover fixed charges by \$255,000, and \$202,000, and \$813,000, \$746,000, \$847,000, \$914,000, and \$746,000, for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 and for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999, and 1998, respectively. The financial information included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003 is incorporated by reference.

## CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the reference to our firm under the caption "Experts" in the Registration Statement (Form S-3) and related Prospectus of Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc. for the registration of its common stock and to the incorporation by reference therein of our report dated January 24, 2003, with respect to the financial statements of Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc. included in its Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Diego, California June 2, 2003